>4

SOVIET PHYSICS
TRANSLATIONS

Published with the cooperation and support of the
National Science Foundation.

Soviet Physics—Technical Physics

A translation of the “Journal of Technical Phys-
ics” of the Academy of Sciences of the U.S.S.R.
The translation began with the 1956 issues. Twelve
issues per year, approximately 3,000 Russian pages.
Annually $75.00 domestic, $79.00 foreign. Libra-
ries * $35.00 domestic, $39.00 foreign. Back num-
bers, all issues $8.00.

Soviet Physics—Acoustics

A translation of the “Journal of Acoustics” of
the Academy of Sciences of the U.S.S.R. The
translation began with the 1955 issues. Four issues
per year, approximately 400 Russian pages. An-
nually $12.00 domestic, $14.00 foreign. (No library
discounts.) Back numbers, all issues $4.00.

Soviet Physics—''Doklady”

A translation of all of the “Physics Sections” of
the Proceedings of the Academy of Sciences of the
U.S.S.R. The translation began with the 1956 is-
sues. Six issues per year, approximately 1,500 Rus-
sian pages. Annually $35.00 domestic, $39.00 for-
eign, Libraries* $15.00 domestic, $18.00 foreign.
Back numbers for Volumes 1 and 2, $5.00 per is-
sue; Volume 3 and subsequent, $7.00 per issue.

Soviet Physics—]JETP

A translation of the "_l-_mrnal of Experimental
and Theoretical Physics’” of the Academy of Sci-
ences of the U.S.S.R. The translation began with
the 1955 issue. Twelve issues per year, approxi-
mately 4,000 Russian pages. Annually $75.00 do-
mestic, $79.00 foreign. Libraries * $35.00 domestic,
$39.00 foreign. Back numbers, all issues, $8.00.

Soviet Physics—"‘Crystallography”’

A translation of the journal “Crystallography” of
the Academy of Sciences of the U.S.S.R. The
translation began with the 1957 issues. Six issues
per year, approximately 1,000 Russian pages. An-
nually $25.00 domestic, $27.00 foreign. Libraries*
$10.00 domestic, $12.00 foreign. Back numbers, all
issues $5.00.

Soviet Astronomy—A|

A translation of the “Astronomical Journal” of
the Academy of Sciences of the U.S.S.R. The trans-
lation began with the 1957 issues, Six issues per
year, approximately 1,100 Russian pages. Annually
$25.00 domestic, $27.00 foreign. Libraries* $10.00
domestic, $12.00 foreign. Back numbers, all issues
$5.00.

* For libraries of non-profit academic institutions.

The expanded program of the American Insti-
tute of Physics comprises translation of six lead-
ing Soviet physics journals, as listed above.
These translations, by competent, qualified sci-
entists, provide all research laboratories and
libraries with accurate and up-to-date informa-
tion of the results of research in the U.S.S.R.
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The Royal Institution of Great Britain has an-
nounced that its Proceedings, formerly published on an
annual basis, will henceforth appear three times a
year, The Proceedings contain the Royal Institution’s
“Evening Discourses”, each of which is a popular sum-
mary of some branch of research or learning given by
an authority in the field. Beginning in 1959, the non-
member subscription rate will be 21s. per year. Sub-
scription orders should be sent to The Royal Institu-
tion, 21 Albemarle St., London, W.1, England,

——————————

Milton Abramowitz, head of the Computation Lab-
oratory of the Applied Mathematics Division at the
National Bureau of Standards, died of a heart attack on
July 5. His age was 43. Born in Brooklyn, N. Y., Dr,
Abramowitz received his bachelor’s and master's de-
grees from Brooklyn College and his PhD from New
York University in 1948,

Starting in 1938 as an original member of the tech-
nical planning staff of the New York Mathematical
Tables Project, the scientific program of which was
under NBS direction, he became chief of the Bureau's
Computation Laboratory in 1954. In addition to super-
vising the Laboratory’s computation facilities, he di-
rected the preparation of mathematical tables and
performed research in numerical analysis and mathe-
matical physics.

He is known for his significant contribution to the
planning and preparation of the well-known volumes
of basic mathematical tables published in the Mathe-
matical Tables Series of the original New York group
and in the Applied Mathematics Series of the Bureau,
and most recently for his editorship of a Handbook of
Mathematical Functions, which the Bureau is prepar-
ing under the sponsorship of the National Science
Foundation. Dr. Abramowitz also served as an occas-
sional reviewer of books for Physics Today.

Ernest O. Lawrence, director of the University of
California Radiation Laboratory at Berkeley, died on
August 27th in Palo Alto, Calif., after having under-
gone an emergency operation there. Dr. Lawrence, who
was 57 at the time of his death, had been in Geneva,
Switzerland, during the previous month as one of the
three United States members of the Western delegation
at the meeting of Western and Soviet bloc scientists
to discuss the technical aspects of nuclear test detection
methods. During those talks he became ill and returned
to California.

Born in Canton, S. D., he graduated from the Uni-
versity of South Dakota in 1922 and received his PhD
from Yale University in 1925. He was a research fel-
low at Vale until 1927, when he was appointed assist-
ant professor of physics, He went to the Berkeley
campus of the University of California in the follow-
ing year as an associate professor and in 1930, at the
age of 29, was promoted to the rank of full professor of
physics. It was during that period that the notion of
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the cyclotron was conceived. As an alternative to the
need for shielding cylinders of increasing length to
achieve higher energies with linear accelerators, Law-
rence proposed the use of a magnetic field to channel
accelerated particles in a spiral path of increasing
radius. The idea was first reported at a meeting of the
National Academy of Sciences held in Berkeley in
September 1930, and during the following year Law-
rence, together with M. Stanley Livingston, constructed
the first experimental model of such a device and suc-
cessfully accelerated protons to an energy of 80 kev.
The new machine was quickly dubbed the “cyclotron”
and, although Lawrence and his Berkeley colleagues
subsequently objected to such laboratory slang and
formally proposed the more dignified term “magnetic
resonance accelerator”, the device and its successors
remained cyclotrons.

In 1939, Dr. Lawrence was awarded the Nobel
Prize in physics for having developed the cyclotron,
which was recognized to be a research tool of immeasur-
able importance not only in physics but in chemistry
and the biological and medical sciences as well. He
was the recipient of many other awards, including the
Comstock Prize of the National Academy of Sciences
and the Hughes Medal of the Royal Society. He re-
ceived innumerable honorary degrees from educational
institutions in the US and abroad, and was elected to
honorary membership by the Soviet Academy of Sci-
ence and by the Royal Swedish and the Royal Irish
Academies. A fellow of the American Physical Society,
he served as a member of the APS Council during the
period 1934-37. Last fall he received the Atomic En-
ergy Commission’s $50 000 Enrico Fermi Award.

George B. Pegram, who played an important part
in the creation of the American Institute of Physics
27 years ago and who served through most of the
intervening period as an officer of the Institute, died on
August 12th at his home in Swarthmore, Pa. He was
81 years of age.

Born in Trinity, N. C., he graduated from Trinity
College (now Duke University) in 1895 and five years
later came to Columbia University as an assistant in
physics. He stayed at Columbia for 58 years and after
1950, the year of his formal retirement, served as
special adviser to the president of the University. He
received his PhD in physics at Columbia in 1903, be-
came an instructor in 1905, a Tyndall Fellow in 1907,
assistant professor in 1909, associate professor in 1912,
and full professor in 1918. During two subsequent 12-
vear periods he served as dean of the Columbia School
of Mines, Engineering, and Chemistry and as dean of
the Graduate Faculties. He was named vice president
of the University in 1949,

He became a member of the American Physical So-
ciety shortly after it was organized, and in 1916 was
elected a member of the Council. Two years later he
became treasurer of the Society and served continu-
ously in that post thereafter until his retirement in
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1957. He was also elected as the Society’s president for
the year 1941. He was then heavily involved in the
administration of defense-related research at Columbia
and in the work of the Uranium (S-1) Section of the
National Defense Research Committee which was re-
sponsible for initiating and coordinating the nation-wide
program of nuclear research that was later to become
the Manhattan Project. Owing to the burden of these
duties, Dean Pegram resigned as president of the Physi-
cal Society after having completed only half of his
term of office,

As dean of Columbia’s Graduate Faculties in the pe-
riod before and during World War 11, he was influ-
ential in making the University’s research facilities and
talents available for the study of problems vital to the
national defense. The first attempt by an American
scientist to interest the federal government in the mili-
tary potentialities of nuclear fission was made by Dean
Pegram in March 1939, shortly after the fission hy-
pothesis had been experimentally confirmed at Colum-
bia, when he contacted the Navy Department and ar-
ranged for a conference between Enrico Fermi and
Navy representatives. Through the war years Dean
Pegram headed the University’s Committee on War Re-
search, which administered Columbia’s defense con-
tracts in both nuclear and undersea-warfare research.

During the discussions that took place in 1930 and
earlier with regard to the formation of the American
Institute of Physics, Dean Pegram was not only active,
but instrumental, in the task of defining the kind of
organization that was needed. Together with the late
Karl T. Compton, Dean Pegram accepted the responsi-
bility for raising funds and getting the new Institute
started. He became the author of the By-Laws and
served as the Institute’s first secretary—remaining in
that post from 1931 until 1945, In 1938 he was also
elected treasurer of the Institute and he continued to
serve in that capacity until his retirement in March
1956.

His last public appearance before a gathering of sci-
entists took place one year ago at AIP headquarters in
New York City, when he was the recipient of the In-
stitute’s first Karl Taylor Compton Award. He was
chosen by the Institute’s Governing Board to be the
first Compton Medalist in recognition of “His high
statesmanship in the field of physics; his devotion to
the American Physical Society as a member for fifty-
eight years and an officer for thirty-eight years; his
principal role in founding and developing the American
Institute of Physics and serving as its secretary and its
treasurer; his wise counsel and guidance in the ad-
ministration of the affairs of these organizations: his
development of teaching and research at Columbia Uni-
versity; his administrative guidance of defense research
in physics; his pioneer initiative in the development of
atomic energy: and, in general, his kindness, wisdom,
fidelity, vigor, and foresight in the performance of all
those tasks, for which he has earned the unanimous re-
gard, respect, and gratitude of physicists.”



